ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2012
Members Present: Mr. Darrow, Ms. Marteney, Ms.Calarco, Mr. Kilmer and Mr. Tamburrino 
Staff Present: Mr. Fusco
APPLICATIONS APPROVED:.47 Frazee Street, 137 Curtis Place, 30 Lake Avenue and 6 Perry Street 
APPLICATIONS DENIED:  None
APPLICATIONS TABLED:  26 Franklin Street 

Mr. Darrow:
Good evening.  Welcome to the City of Auburn Zoning Board of Appeals.  I’m Board Chairman Edward Darrow.  Tonight we will be hearing 26 Franklin Street which was tabled, 47 Frazee Street, 137 Curtis Place, 30 Lake Ave. and 6 Perry Street.  I would like to make sure that all applicants know this is a seven-member Board, we do have two absentees tonight – one due to a vacancy, one due to a work commitment.  Is there anybody mentioned that would like to table this ‘til the next session being that there’s only a five-member Board present tonight?  May the record show that nobody has signified they wish to table at this time

_______________________________________________________

26 Franklin Street – Area variance for conversion from a single family dwelling to a two family dwelling.
Mr. Darrow:
26 Franklin Street, would you please come to the podium.
Mr. Hasan:

I wish to…
Mr. Darrow:
You wish to table sir?  Okay, you will be tabled until our next regular meeting…
Mr. Fusco:

We’ve got a lot of people here…maybe we should do this…we tabled this once already…we have to hear this case.

Mr. Darrow:
What are we going to do?  We’ve only got five members.  
Mr. Fusco:

We can’t…

Mr. Darrow:
I know, I understand, we can’t keep tabling it but the problem is there’s only five members.  Should we hear those who have come?

Mr. Fusco:

We can do that…

Mr. Darrow:
…and then just close the public portion?

Mr. Fusco:

We can open the proof and continue the public portion.

Mr. Darrow:
Okay.

Mr. Fusco:

We can do that.  The reality is…I’m not certainly…

Ms. Marteney:
Is it going to change next time, are you going to have more people next time?

Mr. Darrow:
Unfortunately there’s one vacancy and one gentleman had a work commitment and wasn’t able to make it.  

26 Franklin Street, if you could just please come to the podium.  What we’re going to do is being there are people in the gallery who have come to testify, I’d like to hear what they have to say but it will…any decision will be tabled ‘til the next meeting because at that point in time, our absent members can review it via minutes.  Okay?  Could you please give your name, address and tell us what you’d like to do.

Mr. Hasan:

Majdi Hasan, owner of 26 Franklin Street…convert from one to a two-family.  

Mr. Darrow:
Okay, thank you.  You can be seated at this time.

Mr. Fusco:

Strike it, strike it, I do have one question for you.  We’ve got three letters which will be written into the…read into the record by the Chairman but I read your letter as well which we can read in as well.  Here’s a question that is raised in the letter from a fellow by the name of Michael Kelliher who can’t be here tonight but who wrote a letter.  He indicates that the tax, I’m reading quoting now, the tax sale document stated that the property at the time of purchase was a one-family dwelling.  Is he correct in that?
Mr. Hasan:

To be honest with you, I don’t remember, honestly.  

Mr. Darrow:
Just so you are aware, we do have paperwork that’s been supplied by the City that states that it was.

Mr. Hasan:

Okay.  But it also was a two-family.  I don’t know if it was converted illegally but everything that was there…two electric meters, two gas meters, two furnaces, two hot water tanks were all there.

Mr. Darrow:
When you say…was it marketed illegally, posing that question.  This was a property that was marketed by the City.  There was a foreclosure property that you purchased.  Am I correct?

Mr. Hasan:

Yes sir.

Mr. Darrow:
Now all of the City records show it as a one.

Mr. Hasan:

But it was a two at one time.

Mr. Darrow:
At one time.  But when marketed to you, it was shown…our paperwork shows it was a one.

Mr. Hasan:

Honestly, it was I think back in ’09, I’m not sure, honestly…if I was I would tell you.

Mr. Darrow:
Okay.  You may be seated.

Mr. Hasan:

Thank you.

Mr. Fusco:

Okay, we have a letter from Michael Kelliher dated August 15, 2012 which states:

“I am unable to attend the meeting on August 27th.  I oppose the requested variance for a conversion of 26 Franklin Street from a single-family dwelling to a two-family dwelling.  I’m the owner of 9 Franklin Street.  I and my family have lived in this block in Auburn since 1955.  The population density on this street has grown recently and what with the problems including continuous including continuous litter consisting of glass, beer, liquor bottles, food containers, loud music, parties involving large numbers.  Police calls have increased in the area to meet the growing problems.  Auburn’s Municipal Codes requires homes revert back to their original use after being empty one year.  This residence falls into that category.  The tax sale documents state that the property at the time of the purchase was a one-family dwelling.  I request that the variance not be granted and that the property remain a one-family dwelling.”
We also have a letter from…

Mr. Hasan:

Excuse me…

Mr. Darrow:
I’m sorry, we…

Mr. Hasan:

Okay, but all this doesn’t make any sense because they’re born and all this…has anyone seen any calls…police calls…

Mr. Fusco:

You’re out of order sir.

Mr. Darrow:
Excuse me.  Please sit down.  

Mr. Fusco:

Moving on with the record reflect we also have the letter from Christopher Spirano which states:

“Dear Ms. Jensen and Members of the Zoning Board.  I am writing this letter as I am unable to attend the meeting due to work.  An application has been filed by Mr. Hasan for a variance to permit the conversion of a home from a single-family dwelling to a two-family home at 26 Franklin Street in the City of Auburn.  The property in question is presently zoned for a single-family dwelling and the adjacent properties are either multi-family dwellings or empty, abandoned single-family homes.  As a property owner in the area, I the undersigned below (and the undersigned is Christopher Spirano) do hereby request that the pending application mentioned herein be denied by the City Zoning Board on the following grounds.  My first issue with this application is that I was never even notified of the hearing.”

Because of the time restriction that it will go over if the person was here, I’m going to edit the reading.

He says “I never got notice” but obviously he’s got notice, he’s written us a letter. “The second reason is there are already numerous two-plus family dwelling homes on this small stretch of road between Lewis Street and North Fulton Street.  I live next to a two-family dwelling on the other side of my house that’s an eyesore.  It’s been empty for a long time now and the lawn hasn’t been mowed in months.  One of my biggest concerns came from an appraiser that recently appraised of my home so that I could refinance my mortgage.  He told me because of numerous multi-family dwellings and Chapel House being so close, the value of my home is a lot lower than it could be.  I recently tried to sell my home without success.   One of the reasons I’ve heard from the realtor is that the area is becoming too populated because of the numerous multi-family dwellings with dirt-cheap rent.”
He then goes on to talk about sexual predators moving into the area, questioning how Auburn got rated number 18 in the Forbes list of best cities to raise your children in, says he sees a lot of increased traffic and trash and would like to see less crime.  He talks about his home being bought as a single-family dwelling back in 2010 because it had been empty and that the Code requires it to revert back to a single-family because it was empty for over a year.  He then goes on to say he does not know Mr. Hasan personally, has nothing against him, he may be a fine landlord and says I’m not insinuating that he’s a bad person but he does observe that he’s an absentee landlord and he owns two other properties in the City that he does not know the condition of.  He concludes by saying that he requests that we deny the application for a variance.

And then lastly, Mr. Hasan himself has submitted a letter.  He’s here to talk about it and undoubtedly we’ll talk about it more next month so instead of taking time to read that, we’ll include that in the record and if you wish to amplify that further next month when you testify that will be fine.

Mr. Darrow: 
Thank you.  Mr. Hasan could you please re-approach the podium?  Could you give our name for the record again?

Mr. Hasan:

Majdi Hasan, 26 Franklin Street.

Mr. Darrow:
Do the Board members have any questions for Mr. Hasan at this time?  None?  Okay, thank you.  You may be seated sir.

Is there anybody here wishing to speak for or against this application?  I see…sir, please come forward.  Could you please give your name and address for the record.

Mr. Lupien:

My name is Bill Lupien, I live at 11 Franklin Street.  I’ve been there, it’s my wife’s family house, they’ve been there 51 years, I’ve been there.  On the street is roughly 20 houses of which seven are single-family, the other 13 have 37 units.  That’s a lot of units.  Plus at the end of the street is the Chapel House that can have up to 16 occupants there for two to three months.  We have an unbelievable amount of people that go up and down the streets, like the other person said, they have all kinds of litter.  The police are out there every single night, I don’t think I can ever remember one night that I haven’t seen the police cars go up or down and stop at one of the residences up there.  There’s loud music, down about three houses there’s a huge party.  The other day there was over a hundred people showed up.  It took four cops to get them out of there.  This is happening more and more frequently because of the density of the housing and the type of people there.  I don’t have anything against him but if he wants a multi-family place, he should buy one.  I gave the…I asked the assessors to give me information which clearly shows at the auction that it was marketed as a single-family house, it has been a single-family house for a number of years and it would be not fair for everybody on the street to increase the density even more and bring more problems with it.  Thank you very much.  Now this is the third time…we won’t…this has been on twice before so this will be the third one.  I may not be able to make to make it to the next meeting but I would like to remember that if you could.
Mr. Darrow:
Sir, it will be made a matter of the record and I personally am going to see that each member is called so that we have a full contingency for a decision.

Mr. Fusco:

One thing Mr. Lupien, you understand that even if you do come next month, you will not get the opportunity to testify again.  When we do have these over a period of time, we give everybody one opportunity.  Obviously the applicant may have to testify again because we may have questions for him. But for just regular members of the public, you only get one time.

Mr. Lupien:

Thank you very much.

Mr. Darrow:
Thank you sir.  Yes sir, please come forward.  If you could speak into the microphone, give your name and address.

Mr. Medoro:
I’ll do my best.  My name is Chuck…Charles Medoro.  I’m a retired New York State teacher from Auburn.  I’m not speaking for Mr. Hasan but in support of him.  In regards to single-family dwellings and a one-family dwelling.  I live on Perry Street, second house, 67 Perry and it’s a blue-collar neighborhood, many people have been there for years and they’re family home.  The point I’m alluding to is that there is a home about four houses up from where I reside, single-family home, police constantly call, many tenants in that single-family home.  Which leads me to believe that it’s up to owner as to how many people are going to live or dwell in the residence.  Right now, Mr. Hasan has one person, an elderly gentleman living in a lower apartment.  If things go in their favor, he will have a couple, two people, a family living upstairs.  If he’s forced into re-structuring this building that he’s already renovated, not only will it cost him increased financial hardship and labor, but there’s nothing that indicates that the population density will be smaller because more often than not, in a single-family dwelling you have a family.  That may include a husband, a wife, however the family is structured, and children, possibly pets, dogs, cats.  I’m not trying to paint a negative picture, just a realistic one.  I don’t think that single-family or two-family dwelling is the problem.  I think it’s the landlord and how that is handled.  That’s what I have to share with you.
Mr. Darrow:
Thank you sir.

Mr. Medoro:
You’re welcome.

Mr. Darrow:
Is there anybody else wishing to speak, please come forward.  Ma’am?  If you can give your name and your address for the record.

Ms. Lupien:
Patty Lupien…

Mr. Darrow:
I’m sorry, say that again.

Ms. Lupien:
Patty Lupien, 11 Franklin Street. There’s two letters that you received back in June that you haven’t read yet.  One is mine and one is the neighbors at maybe 16 or 18 Franklin Street and I’d like you to read them into the record also.

Mr. Fusco:

Could you tell me what you’re letter says?

Ms. Lupien:
I have been in that location since 1961 and I added  up the residents on the street.  I’m retired and I’m out there all day long.  I watch what goes on.  There’s so many apartments and the apartments all have thousands of people in them.  To add two more and then the house next to it is a two-family and the house down the street, which is empty is a two-family.  That’s six more families that can go in on that street, possibly another 30 or 35 people.  It’s ridiculous.  There’s just trash and police cars and people wandering around all times of the day and night.  It’s just terrible.  The neighborhood has gone so far downhill and to add more people into it is just…it’s not going to work up there.  Bad situation, it really is and I request that you deny the request. Thank you.
Mr. Darrow:
Thank you.  Yes sir?  Please state your name and address for the record.

Mr. Apharro:
My name’s Andy Apharro and I work for Majdi Hasan.  I’m the guy that…I’m his carpenter.  I’m the man that got…gets permits for his houses here in Auburn and I am well know in Syracuse with all Code Enforcement.  For 13  years this inspector told me “who are you” and I said Andy Apharro.  He says you’re nobody.  I said why?  He says you need getting certificate, you need to go to school and then you’ll be somebody.  So I did that, back in 2000.  I have papers and records here of all the properties and permits that I get from Jessica…from Jessica…is that her name?  Downstairs.  And this is my life.  I understand what you said sir ‘cause I was staying there when I was remodeling upstairs.  He’s not lying.  But that doesn’t have nothing to do…what the lady said too.  You got that bar, you’ve got the Chapel House and you got the apartments next to us, next to the laundry mat.  You got the back…and I’ve seen bad things happen, especially across the street, and I’ve seen the vacant house next to our house, I seen guys there, I ran them off.  I seen girls in the back, I ran them off, I told Mr. Hasan we need to put a fence here and that’s what I want to do.  Code Enforcement they all know me, I pass all my tests, I passed everything.  All my inspections, they pass.  I understand where these people are coming from ‘cause I was there for a week when I was working and I did see bad things happen.  But that property was…that building, I always wanted to make this…I cleaned it up.  I make sure nobody’s back there, I make sure nobody’s next door at that house.  I don’t know whose it is, vacant house.  But what I’m trying to say is that I don’t see why we couldn’t do a two-family…I seen two meters.  Like he said, I seen two water heaters, two furnaces.  I cleaned the whole place up real good.  I don’t know, there’s just…to me it’s a good idea but…help people that need an apartment. But…that’s what does make the neighborhood bad, the drugs, the Chapel House, the people on the front and the people on the side.  Yeah, what can we do?  We can’t do anything about that.  You have the police calls all the time but what can we do?  Seriously, what can we do?  Auburn is growing bigger and bigger and bigger.  Not just that street.  I live on 27 Derby and I passed that inspection and it’s in your records and I’m the man that finished all that work.  And that house was vacant, very, very bad.  I wish you can come and see my apartment.  Downstairs and upstairs, what I’ve done with that place, I mean bad. This man put money into these places and not cheap but expensive material ‘cause I don’t mess with cheap material.  I know my jacks, my material, I know my Codes.  I don’t see where it couldn’t be two apartments and it’s like that.  I seen the meters, nothing new.  Everything’s old down there.  I just look at the…really think about it.  It’s not us, it’s the neighborhood.  It’s not our building, it’s the neighborhood and I basically…it’s true that we get bad people in the neighborhood.  We got to do something about them…
Mr. Darrow:
Okay sir, excuse me but your time’s expired.  I’d like to thank you for your testimony.

Mr. Apharro:
Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Anybody else wishing to speak for or against this applicant?  Please give your name and address for the record.

Ms. Barbagallo:
Good evening, my name is Carol Barbagallo.  I currently reside at 18 Franklin Street, I own it.  I bought it in 1997 at which time this house that we are discussing this evening was empty and it has been empty up ‘til, as far as I’m concerned, the current time.  I don’t believe…the gentleman said he has been living there, I’ve hear that there was a girl living there too which I…none of my business but I’m wondering was there a Certificate of Occupancy gotten at any time?  Okay?  My concern also is, as a property owner, the value of the property, mine, being brought down by the surrounding area.  The Lupiens, myself, the two houses directly around me and everything are trying their darndest to get the area in a better situation.  Those homes were beautiful at one time, a moneyed section even.  It has since gone downhill, we don’t want to see it go down anymore.  Thank you for your time.
Mr. Darrow:
Thank you ma’am.  Anybody else wishing to speak for or against?  Anyone else?  Seeing none at this time, we will…any questions at this time or willing to wait until next meeting?  All right. We will be then looking for a motion to table 26 Franklin Street to our next meeting.  

Mr. Kilmer:

So moved.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I’d like to make a motion we table.  

Mr. Darrow:
Do we have a…

Ms. Marteney:
Second.

Mr. Darrow:
Okay.

Mr. Fusco:

And we will be keeping the public hearing open.

Mr. Darrow:
Yes.  The public hearing will be open.  All those in favor, aye.  Opposed?  All in favor, carried.  26 Franklin is tabled to our next regular meeting which will be September 24th.  Thank you.

_____________________________________________________

47 Frazee Street – Area variance for the side yard setback to construct an addition to the west side.
Mr. Darrow:
47 Frazee Street.  Sir, could you please state your name and address and tell us what you’d like to do.
Mr. DeNardo:
Yes.  My names is Charles DeNardo, I live at 47 Frazee Street with my wife, Cynthia.  What we’d like to do is build a 30 foot by 14 foot addition on the west side of the house.  The reason we need the variance is because it’s too close to the property line, the road where I’m from.  The reason is we need to build the addition, I think I put it in the application, right now the house is a three-bedroom, it’s got one bedroom downstairs and two bedrooms upstairs.  At one time…when we purchased the house a few ago, we were planning on using the downstairs bedroom, my wife is diabetic, she’s got a lot of medical problems and she continually gets worse.  She’s disabled right now because of her neurapathy in her feet and that’s going to continue to get worse.  A year ago, her brother had his leg amputated so he had to come and live with us because our downstairs is handicap accessible because when we were remodeling that we had to make sure we had access for wheelchairs and things.  So, he’s currently occupying the downstairs bedroom but if my wife’s health continues…deterioration of her health problems, we’re going to need another downstairs bedroom.  I I think right now that’s the only place that I can see where we can add on to the property.  
Mr. Darrow:
Any questions from the members?

Mr. Tamburrino:
Yeah.  Mr. DeNardo, I looked at your property and it looks…you have…there’s a chain-link fence, right?

Mr. DeNardo:
Yes.  

Mr. Tamburrino:
But it’s on the west side of your property, right?

Mr. DeNardo:
It goes in front and the end on the west side.

Mr. Tamburrino:
And behind your house you have a trampoline and some other equipment, a pool and small deck, so you’d like…you can’t expand in direction?

Mr. DeNardo:
No, the pool, you can’t really move that.  It’s immovable and not…the space that’s behind the house, between the back of the house up to the walkway by the pool is only 8 foot wide which really isn’t going to accommodate a bed and be able to put the wheelchair on the side of it.

Mr. Tamburriono:
Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Any other questions? Sir, you may be seated at this time.  Is there anybody here to speak for or against 47 Frazee Street?  Anyone present wishing to speak for or against 47 Frazee Street?  Hearing none, seeing, I shall close the public portion, we’ll discuss this amongst ourselves.  Thoughts, feelings?

Mr. Tamburrino:
Now this one here, looking at this application, it says “requesting an area variance to construct 14 feet by 30 foot, six inch addition to west side of existing structure”.  What is the variance on this?  Where is this?  It’s not clear.

Mr. Kilmer:

Side yard setback.

Mr. Tamburrion:
It’s the side yard?  Okay.

Ms. Marteney:
Well, it has two so it’s not a side yard setback…

Mr. Darrow:
Well no, it’s actually…he has two front yards ‘cause it’s a corner lot.  So it would be…25 foot is required so that’s from edge of the road…25 is to the sidewalk, I believe.  Am I correct Andy?

Ms. Marteny:
There’s no sidewalk…

Mr. Darrow:
Yeah, I know.  We’d have to go from the curb.

Ms. Marteney:
He has marks on that’s 33 feet to the road edge and it’s 24 feet to the chain link fence and the addition is 14 feet from any…

Mr. Darrow:
So…

Ms. Marteney:
Ten feet…basically.

Mr. Darrow:
Yeah, ten…actually 11 feet?  Eleven feet would make it 25 so...I am reading that it would be an 11 foot area variance to the property.  Unfortunately Codes isn’t here to verify that but…

Ms. Marteney:
We really…we can’t really see the sidelines on the picture…from the corner…
Mr. Darrow:
The thing that makes it tough is on the drawing, we don’t actually have a survey so we don’t know the actual property lines.

Mr. Tamburrino:
What do you take it from, the setbacks from the road edge?

Mr. Darrow:
You would have to in this case, from the curbing.  

Ms. Marteney:
That’s 33 feet.

Mr. Darrow:
Sir, could you reapproach the podium for a question please.  As far as your chain link fence to the side that the addition’s going to be one, which I’m seeing as kind of the south side of the property, is that your property line or do you not…are you not sure where your property line is in relationship to your fence.

Mr. DeNardo:
No, I’m not positive where the property line actually is…

Mr. Darrow:
Okay.  Thank you, you may be seated.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Wait, this measurement is…let’s start with 33 feet, right, you have to have 25, correct?  So that’s eight feet…he wants 14…

Mr. Darrow:
Right.  It’s 11 foot.  

Mr. Tamburrion:
No, I only see six feet he requires.

Mr. Darrow:
No, 25 foot is required, it’s considered a front yard.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Right, so we get 33 feet, right?

Ms. Marteney:
To the road edge.

Mr. Tamburrino:
To the road edge.  Minus 25 leaves you eight feet.  Right.

Mr. Darrow:
Correct.

Mr. Tamburrino:
So he’s got eight feet, he wants 14.  Right?  I’m reading this the way I read the addition…it goes out 14 feet.  Right. So it leaves only six more.  He needs six feet which is not much.  The other way, let’s see what he’s got here.  If the drawing is 25, he’s in trouble…there’s only 6 feet here, that’s pretty tight.  He’s got one foot and needs a variance of like 14 feet, six inches here.

Ms. Marteney:
From the other direction?

Mr. Tamburrino:
On the other direction, yeah.

Ms. Marteney:
It’s roughly 26 feet.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Right, minus 25 is one foot, right.  He wants 15 feet, six inches.  Right?

Ms. Marteney:
No, he’s showing that’s where the fence is.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Oh, I’m sorry, I read that…

Ms. Marteney:
He’s fine on that side.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Oh he’s fine, you’re right.

Mr. Darrow:
You have…six feet is the proper.

Mr. Tamburrino:
That’s six feet?  Okay, now we’re square…that should be on the application.

Mr. Darrow:
Yes, it should.  

Mr. Tamburrion:
It’s not fair, we have to figure this out ourselves. 

Ms. Marteney:
That really makes it bad!

Mr. Darrow:
So yes, it appears that the variance would be six feet.  Appears.  Anymore discussion?

Mr. Tamburrino:
Just one more thing.  This house, it faces…there’s a chain link fence and then the other side of the street there is…is it a wooded area?  I can’t remember.

Ms. Marteney:
In the back?  No.  It’s Columbus Street.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Yeah but it’s wooded there isn’t it?

Ms. Marteney:
No.  There’s a house right across the street.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Okay.

Ms. Marteney:
But there’s lots of woods. But 33 feet from the house to the road edge minus 15 is not six feet.

Mr. Tamburrino:
You’ve got 33 feet, right.  You need a slope for 25.  Correct?

Ms. Marteney:
Yes.

Mr. Tamburrino:
You’ve got 25 feet that means he has an eight foot…he wants 14…14 minus it is six feet.

Ms. Marteney:
Okay.

Mr. Darrow:
What we’re going to do, sir so you know.  We’re going by your measurements, your notes here without a site plan.  So the figure that comes up is six from what we feel is needed by the information we’re given.  Should it be greater than six, you’re going to need to reapply.  Should it be less than six, you’re going to be fine.  Okay?
Mr. Tamburriono:
The application will be fine.

Mr. Darrow:
Yeah.  So, the Chair will entertain a motion.  Or will we table it?

Mr. Tamburrino:
 No.  Why, because you’re saying the application is okay?

Mr. Darrow:
Yes, we’ll put it forward at six.  If he should need seven, eight or more, he’s going to need to reapply because we’re coming up with six by measurements given by him without a survey.  

Mr. Tamburrino:
I make a motion that we grant Charles and Cynthia DeNardo of 47 Frazee Street an area variance to construct a 14 foot by 30 foot, six inch addition to the west side of the existing structure.

Mr. Fusco:

Let the area variance be six feet.

Mr. Tamburrino:
And the area variance will be six feet.

Mr. Darrow:
We have a motion, do we have a second?

Ms. Calarco:
Second.

Mr. Darrow:
Roll call please.

VOTING IN FAVOR: 
Ms. Marteney, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino, and Mr. Darrow

Mr. Darrow:
Your application has been approved for six foot variance.  As I said, make sure that is what you need, otherwise let Code Enforcement know.

Mr. DeNardo:
Thank you.  I do have one question.  

Mr. Darrow:
Please reapproach.

Mr. DeNardo:
My question is in the event that it is less than six foot…

Mr. Darrow:
You need not do anything.

Mr. DeNardo:
Can I shorten the 14 foot into like 13 feet, if I need that extra foot?

Ms. Marteney:
Then you won’t need more.

Mr. DeNardo:
Okay.

Mr. Darrow:
We’re going strictly by the addition size you’re creating so what you’re saying you’re looking for in the addition, that is what your addition needs to be because that’s what we advertized, that’s what we voted on.  But, if it should end up you only needed five instead of six, there’s a lost foot, but…you have to stay with the size you submitted.  Okay?

Mr. DeNardo:
Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Thank you.

______________________________________________________  

137 Curtis Place – Two (2) area variances for the placement of an 18’ above ground pool.
Mr. Darrow:
137 Curtis Place.  Sir, if you could please give your name and address for the record and tell us what you’d like to do.
Mr. Kenny:

Robert Kenny, 137 Curtis Place, take down a 24-year old pool and put up a new one, 18 round.  

Mr. Darrow:
Is your current pool 18 round?

Mr. Kenny:

Yes.

Mr. Darrow:
Okay, staying in the same place, same footprint?

Mr. Kenny:

Yup.  Back 24 years ago, I put the pool in and I had a diagram written out on back with a string and when they put the pool in I need a two-foot variance on my west side neighbor and I got the variance.  They put the pool in and when I measured it was four foot away.  So I need six feet on that side.  The house with the parking lot, I got a letter from them and my neighbor stating that there would be no problem wherever I wanted the pool.

Mr. Darrow:
Could I have those letters for the record please?

Mr. Kenny:

They should be with the packet…

Mr. Darrow:
They in the packet?

Ms. Marteney:
One’s from John Bigelow…
Mr. Kenney:
Yup and one’s from John Bedford.

Mr. Darrow:
All right, I found them.  Thank you sir, you may be seated.

Ms. Marteney:
Your pools been there 25 years?

Mr. Kenney:
24.

Mr. Darrow:
Any other questions?  You may be seated.  Is there anybody here wishing to speak for or against this application?  Anyone present wishing to speak for or against this application?  Seeing none, hearing none, I shall close the public portion.
Ms. Marteney:
It doesn’t appear that there’s been a problem in 24 years….

Mr. Darrow:
Pretty much a no brainer.  Okay.  The Chair will entertain a motion.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I’d like to make a motion that we grant Robert and Susan Kenny of 137 Curtis Place two area variances for the placement of an 18 foot above-ground pool.  One, an area variance of three foot of the require 10 foot from the rear property line and two, an area variance of six feet of the required ten feet of the side line to the west.

Mr. Darrow:
We have a motion, do we have a second.

Mr. Kilmer:

Second.

VOTING IN FAVOR: 
Ms. Marteney, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino, and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow:
Your variance has been approved, see Code Enforcement for your permit.  Thank you.

Mr. Kenny:

I was told by Mr. Hicks…I lost the sale of the pool now because I didn’t want it to install it this late in the year.  He told me that the permit’s good for six months?

Mr. Darrow:
Yes it is.

Mr. Kenny:

But he could give me an extension for six months?

Mr. Darrow:
Yes, that is also correct.

Mr. Kenney:
Okay, that’s all I wanted to know.  Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Make sure you go down to renew it before that six months is up.

Mr. Kenny:

Thank you.

______________________​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​_________________________________
30 Lake Avenue – Area variance for an addition on the secondary front yard.
Mr. Darrow:
30 Lake Ave.  Hi, could you please give your name, your address and tell us what you’d like to do for the record.
Ms. Quill:

My name is Kathy Quill.  The address is 30 Lake Avenue here in Auburn and I’d to add a room on to the north side of my property where I currently have a deck.  That room will be…planned to be turned into a kitchen area to enlarge my house.  It’s a one-storey, small ranch and children and friends dwarf it.  I’m a bit out moded.

Mr. Darrow:
Do you plan if the addition is constructed of re-constructing a new deck or no?

Ms. Quill:

If I do anything and I’ve thought hard about this because I’m going to be lost without my deck.  I think if I do anything, I will end up putting a gazebo in my back yard so that that would just in the very back part.  There wouldn’t be enough room to add onto that area comfortably to make it worth it.  So, I would…I’m looking at putting a gazebo in.

Mr. Darrow:
Okay.  That’s what I wanted to make sure you were aware of that you would kind of be losing any space for another deck over there.

Ms. Quill:

Absolutely.  It’s going to break my heart but I really need a bigger kitchen.  I don’t have enough room to even seat six.

Mr. Darrow:
Okay.  Any questions from the Board members?

Ms. Marteney:
So there’s a lot of things you’re doing too.
Ms. Quill:

I’m trying, a lot of catching up to do that didn’t get done but I had to wait to pay my mortgage off.  So that’s all paid off, now I can go for the rest of it.

Ms. Marteney:
That’s right.

Mr. Darrow:
Any other questions?  You may be seated ma’am.

Ms. Quill:

Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Is there anybody present wishing to speak for or against this application?  Anybody present wishing to speak for or against this application?  Hearing none, seeing none, I’m going to close the public portion and we’ll discuss it amongst ourselves.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I live in the neighborhood and I’ve seen that house and I see the deck so I don’t really see an issue.

Mr. Darrow:
I don’t either and it’s a small house to begin with.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Right.

Mr. Darrow:
And unfortunately, those of us with corner lots face that problem of two front yards.

Mr. Marteney:
Well and because the deck has been there you can see exactly what kind of site lines there would be, it’s not going to impose on coming or going around that corner at all.

Mr. Darrow:
No, I don’t feel as though either.

Mr. Tamburrino:
It definitely won’t be close to the corner really.
Ms. Marteney:
No but it’s not going to change the site line…

Mr. Tamburrino:
Right, it’s not going to block the view.

Mr. Darrow:
Any other discussion?  The Chair will accept a motion.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I’d like to make a motion that we grant Kathy Quill  of 30 Lake Avenue an area variance of five feet 3 inches of the required 12 foot six inches for an addition on the secondary front yard.

Mr. Darrow:
Do we have a second?

Ms. Calarco:
Second.

Mr. Darrow:
Roll call please.

VOTING IN FAVOR: 
Ms. Marteney, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino, and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow:
Congratulations, your variance has been approved.  Please see Code Enforcement before you begin any work.

Ms. Quill:

Thank you, I will do that.

Mr. Darrow:
Thank you.

Ms. Quill:

Thank you.
_____________________________________________________

6 Perry Street – Area variance to install a handicapped accessible ramp.
Mr. Darrow:
6 Perry Street.  Please come forward.  Sir, could you give your name, your address and tell us what you’d like to do?

Mr. Leinwand:
My name is Mark Leinand.  I live at 6 Perry Street. We’re applying for a variance for a Handicap ramp that’s been built on the house.  My mother-in-law had a stroke and is disabled and paralyzed.  We had to have her move into our house, my mother-in-law and father- in-law they are living with us and we had the ramp built as an emergency and the builder said that we would be up to Code and he said everything was fine.  Obviously, he didn’t check on that.  So we’re now stuck with this to apply for a variance.

Mr. Darrow:
May I ask who your builder was please?

Mr. Leinwand:
His name is Jeffrey Brown.

Mr. Darrow:
Did at any point you or Mr. Brown attempt to take out a permit to build the ramp?

Mr. Leinwand:
He said because he was building it as temporary ramp that would be easily removed with three bolts, we did not need a permit.  That’s what I was told.  So I was misled, that’s really what happened.
Mr. Darrow:
Are there any questions from the Board members?

Mr. Tamburrino:
I’ve seen…I drove by that ramp, it’s a nice ramp.  I understand the need is real so…

Mr. Darrow:
No, that’s it, I understand the need and…
Mr. Tamburrino:
Oh absolutely.

Mr. Leinwand:
There would be no other way to build a ramp that would be in Code to get access to the house. That would be the problem.  If we need…we need a variance because we had build…not permitted it.  I apologize for doing it backwards but it would have to have had to been this way as well.  

Mr. Darrow:
Any other questions?  You may be seated sir.

Mr. Leinwand:
Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Is there anybody present wishing to speak for or against this application?  Anybody present wishing to speak for or against this application?  Seeing none, hearing none, I’m about to close the public portion.  Thoughts?

Mr. Tamburrino:
I’m just think that maybe a sunset clause.  If the need is no longer there, the ramp should be removed.

Mr. Darrow:
I agree completely.  It does…excuse me sir, sir, the public portion is closed.  I agree completely.  It does bother me that contractors go out building something without a permit, that’s something we can address later.  It does appear a little too close to the walk, for my own feeling.  I do question whether or not it meets the ABA guidelines of 112 pitch.  It might almost be a little too steep and then it would be up to Codes to check to see if the spindles are further than four inches apart because it didn’t look, by eyesight, that it met that building requirement either.  So.
Ms. Calarco:
I guess it’s done first then platform and then upper deck.  It probably does need the pitch.  But they still need the parking.

Ms. Marteney:
But it’s a small front yard and if you’re putting any kind of ramp in there…

Mr. Kilmer:

I think I’ll go with maybe not what we would have approved had to come first, it’s there, it’s necessary.

Mr. Darrow:
And it is, it’s absolutely necessary.  I understand their predicament.  I would like to see any wording that contains a sunset clause and the fact that Codes inspects it.

Mr. Fusco:

Well, hold on…stop.  Whether it meets the State and Federal standards is not our business so that…

Mr. Darrow:
But it Codes…correct?

Mr. Fusco:

So conditioning it on Codes’ acceptance is something that we probably shouldn’t address.  I don’t necessarily know about the issue of the sunset either.  The fact that this has a handicap ramp may make it attractive to other buyers who don’t perhaps have a handicapped person living with them but do have a handicapped frequent visitor.  So, I don’t necessarily know if I would advise you to go in that direction either.  One of the realities of these…and you…
Mr. Darrow:
I would have a hard time keeping it there without…

Mr. Fusco:

I understand that.  We’ll cross that bridge when we come to it.  Right now, that’s not the issue.  The issue the Doc raises is the issue of self-created hardship…that is not defeating in area variance cases as it would be in the use variance case.  Another reality is that in these types of situations, handicapped ramps, front-yard parking to accommodate handicapped people, the Federal Courts have specifically asked Zoning Boards to be a little more reasonable given the inherent difficulty that handicapped people have.  Specifically, the front yard parking situation, there’s a case right out of New Hampshire right on point where the guy applied for…he’d already put in a front yard parking spot because his Mom was handicapped and the Board turned him down and the Federal Court said well let’s be a little more reasonable and more sensitive to the needs of the handicapped people. So, while your observations are right on, dead spot on, I think the thing that you need to do is balance the needs of the handicapped with the straight letter of the Federal Law.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I like the idea of the inspection to Codes though. The American Disabilities Act Code?  There could be a safety issue.

Mr. Darrow:
I see looking at photographs that that would fall on a personal liability for him if it didn’t meet it.
Ms. Calarco:
This isn’t a public building.

Mr. Darrow:
Right.

Mr. Tamburrino:
Okay.

Mr. Darrow:
I do feel strongly about a sunset clause though so that it doesn’t stay there.  If the need should arise, another variance could always be given to a new owner.  But I would have great difficulty supporting this without one.  

Ms. Calarco:
I tend to agree and I also think that because the way it’s been installed, it was installed to being removed again in the future.  It’s never meant to be a long-term.

Mr. Darrow:
And by his own admission, it was meant to be portable and removed with three bolts.  

The Chair will entertain a motion.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I make a motion that we grant Mark Leinwand and Madelaine Harris of 6 Perry Street an area variance to install a handicap accessible ramp with a sunset clause that the ramp will be removed with a change in ownership and/or the loss of need.

Mr. Darrow:
We have a motion, do we have second?

Mr. Kilmer:

Second.

Mr. Darrow:
Roll call?

VOTING IN FAVOR: 
Ms. Marteney, Ms. Calarco, Mr. Kilmer, Mr. Tamburrino, and Mr. Darrow.

Mr. Darrow:
Your variance has been approved.

Mr. Leinwand:
Thank you.

Mr. Darrow:
Thank you.  At this time, we’re going to need to adjourn to Executive Session.  Oh, I’m sorry, before we adjourn.  Has everybody received the minutes of our previous session?  Any additions, corrections or deletions to them.  Seeing none, then the minutes will stand approved as read.

Ms. Marteney:
The only thing is my name was spelled incorrectly.  

Ms. Taylor:

Again?

Mr. Darrow:
I didn’t do the typing.

Ms. Taylor:

I did.  I apologize Susan.

Mr. Darrow:
At this time I’d like to accept a motion that we go into executive session for the purpose of discussing a legal matter.

Mr. Kilmer:

So moved.

Mr. Fusco:

We’re discussing pending litigation and also the Board will be consulting with their attorney.  Those are the two reasons.

The Board moved into Executive Session at 7:50 p.m.

Mr. Darrow:
May the record show we have returned from Executive Session at 8:07 p.m.

Is there anybody present that has any business to come before this Board before we go into housekeeping?  Anybody present has any business before the Board?  Okay, thank you.

First under housekeeping.  I’ve discussed with our counsel the phone calls and lobbying from other members of the community for and against applications that are advertised.  It is the thought of the counsel and myself, we believe it’s best that they’re not accepted, not discussed, just let them know it’s not appropriate and it’s better to be done at the public hearing so it can all become a matter of record so that things aren’t twisted around between any lobbying.  

Also, this we’ll have to address with Council the facts of any handouts being delivered personally to our residences rather than to this office and then distributed with our packets.  

The other problem I have and I’m sure you folks will agree is when we sit down and all of a sudden well this one’s not able to attend, that one’s not able to attend and now we’re at the 11th hour and we’re expected to read and comprehend and make these part of our decision and get then into the minutes.  I personally believe that a policy should be put in place on whether or not there are going to be last minute handouts at a meeting.  

Mr. Fusco:

Here’s my thoughts on that.  Number one, a lot of times the handout is the last minute act because somebody who wanted to be here can’t be here, death in the family, illness, you name it so I don’t necessarily know if it would be possible to do something like that and if you think about it’s a relatively innocent act.  Here’s a letter, read it into the record and then we move on so…and it very seldom happens. We had the case tonight where it happened, we’ve had some controversial cases where it happens but it tends not to happen all the that often and I don’t think that that’s been a problem yet so people are going to be giving us letters at the last minute and it’s really no different than them testifying at the last minute at the hearing and we’re digesting what they have to say.  So I’m not concerned necessarily with that.  As far as written materials that they either send to you or hand to you at your home, I don’t quite know how to handle that. Some people welcome that sort of thing, other people don’t.  But at least if they’re handing you something in writing, I guess you can be polite and say thank you and accept it and bring it here so that it can be made part of the record.  I agree with Mr. Chairman.  The problem is when it’s an oral conversation.  It’s always hard to figure out what it was they said to you out on the street as opposed to a written letter which we can put into the record. So I agree with Eddie one hundred percent.  You don’t want ever to be rude to these people but a) someone making calls on a personal cell phone, that’s wrong.  I mean people should have more courtesy than to do that.  And two, we’ve got…every once in a while, every three or four weeks, three or four months I mean, we get a case where there’s a lot of people lathered up about it, coming and knocking on your door and lobbying it.  I think the way to handle it is that we can all agree that just politely say that you do not…we don’t really talk about these things outside of the hearing room.  The purpose of talking about them in the hearing room is so that we can have a record taken, a verbatim record by our secretary and that when a Court of Law review what it was we decided and why we did it, it’s all right there in black and white.
Mr. Tamburrino:
I think we had a situation on the night we were approached by an applicant.  I felt uncomfortable talking about it.  I agree with you, I think the next time they have a policy, I think we should say before our meeting.

Ms. Marteney:
If anyone calls a Board member, we get to your imput.

Mr. Tamburrino:
You want the maximum transparency, you want to make sure everybody hear it, it should be public.

Mr. Fusco:

And by the same token you don’t want to be rude.  Usually it doesn’t happen where they come knocking on your house and say what about the Smith hearings or the Jones hearings.  Usually it’s across the street at Wegman’s, hey we all see the guy, you’ve known him all your life.  Case in fact, you don’t want to be  rude but I think you can just politely say well gee you’re gong to be a lot more effective instead of telling me here in the aisle of Wegman’s  what your gripe is or that you support it, either way, if you come to the meeting and do it on the record.  That should solve that problem.
Mr. Darrow:
I will add and being in my 20th year on this Board, this case was the first time I had material delivered to my house by people trying to give their opinion.  It’s a pretty good batting average.  One out of twenty years.  It’s not like it’s a huge problem.

Mr. Tamburrino:
I don’t know if this would…actually you understand that it’s all written down, it’s signed, it’s documented, they’re not harassing you.  In a way it gives you more time to review the material.

Mr. Fusco:

As a lawyer representing developers, I’ve done it where I’ll just put together a package of what my proof’s going to be and send it to all seven members of the Board not to hassle them or whatnot but so they can at least take a look at it before the meeting so they kind of know where I’m coming from.  And I’m up front and cc everybody. When it’s written, I don’t really have a problem with it because we can make it part of the record, you can choose to review it ahead of time if you want, you can choose not to review it ahead of time if you don’t want.  But oral conversations are problems.

Mr. Darrow:
That was my main concern with the packets and items delivered to our house, making sure that Council agreed that that was appropriate.

Mr. Kilmer:

In regard to the written letters that we’ve been getting on the table on the night of the meeting, I really don’t have a problem with that.  In specifically the one case tonight, I think maybe there’s been more opportunity for letters to be written because it’s been put off for three months and that’s given the neighbors more and more time to write the letters.
Mr. Darrow:
I don’t mind…

Mr. Kilmer:

One of the reasons why that was just…

Mr. Darrow:
I don’t mind getting the letters at the last minute, I mind not having any time to read them a couple of times and actually take in what’s there.

Mr. Fusco:

Yeah but it’s no different than somebody testifying.

Mr. Darrow:
Yeah it is. 

Mr. Fusco:

Then you’re trying to digest it, you’ve not heard them until tonight when they’re saying…

Ms. Marteney:
But you get real backup materials the night of the meeting that it’s really difficult to read through ten or twelve pages of financial information and that to me is an inappropriate time to get that.

Mr. Darrow:
For me, oral arguments at the podium are very easy to retain.

Mr. Tamburrino:
This is a hypothetical question, we get together one night at our meeting and somebody brings us a volume of material this thick.  Do I have the option of saying I make a motion to table this until next month?

Mr. Darrow:
That’s always your right.

Mr. Tamburrino:
That’s the way to do it.  

Mr. Fusco:

With the Zoning Board it’s pretty safe to always do that. There’s really no down side risk with the Zoning Board saying okay, I want a month to read this over and digest it.  With the Planning Board my answer would be different because there’s a thing called default approval if you don’t decide it in enough time.  So in a Planning Board situation, when the members of the Planning Board want to put it off for a month so they can digest this 12 pages of financial data, the first thing I’ll say is okay does the applicant agree with the tabling for one month and if the applicant says no I don’t, then we have no choice but to decide. There’s no such thing as a default approval with the Zoning Board of Appeals however, so you can be comfortable taking time to do your job.
Mr. Darrow:
Any other comments?  Concerns.  I guess that’s it for housekeeping then.  

Motion to adjourn.

Mr. Kilmer:

So moved.

Mr. Darrow:
All in favor.  Carried unanimously.  Adjourned.
.
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